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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYS!CAL APPEARANCE

Spring Banke was built in two sections; the original is of oak and gum con-
--struction. The sills and floor joists are of hewn oak. The predominantly gum
framing is pit sawed and joined together with mortises and tenons, secured with
- locust pegs. The story-and-a-half earliest section has one room on each floor.

Centered on the west end of the original section is a fireplace, exposed on
the outside. On the inside wall to the left of the fireplace is a four-panelled
door to a small, circular stairway going upstairs. To its right is a small, two-
panelled door for storage space under the stairway. Above the fireplace, four
panels carry the design to the right where a large, four-door cupboard utlllzes
the space. -

The north and south walls each have one window and one door. The plank front
door has large strap hinges, wrought-iron latch on the outside, and wooden latch
on the inside. The windows have old glass. There is a simple chair rail and: beaded
base. The trim on the doors and windows consist of ovolo moulding on the out51de
and beadlng on the inside..

The east wall now contains a door leading to the later portion of the house.  The
seven-foot ceiling is extremely low and has exposed beams beaded on the bottom

- edges. The pine, plank floor boards upstairs are wide and beaded on their under-
sides. :

In the half-story room above the original section, the framlng is exposed and
appears to have always been so. There are two, four-pane windows on either side
of the chimney on the west wall which appear to have been added at the time the

~ later addition was built. Enclosed in the protected east wall (by the later addition)

is a single, small, battened door-window which was probably the original means of
light and ventilation. Protected by a later addition was random-width, beaded,
cypress siding, not original as there are handmade nails beneath it suggestlng
earlier clapboards.

Part of the roof of the old house is also protected by the later wing. It has
hand-split shingles that also do not appear to be the first, as they are nailed in
" the same manner as the siding and were probably done at the same time, indicating
that the earlier house is much older than the later house. '

The later part of the house is two stories high. The framing is oak and gum
and is mill-sawed. It is mortised and tenoned and joined with pegs. The siding
consists of thirty-three-inch cypress shakes with a thirteen-inch exposure. These
shingles average at least three-quarters inch now, and wear indicates probably an
inch thickness when new. They are bevelled on the bottom to provide a watershed.

- Behind these shingles run horizontal cypresscheathing boards,; up to twenty inches

~in width. They run to the top-plate, but do not extend into the peaks. In the
attic the shingles are secured with regular laths. The shingles in the peak ad-
joining the earlier part run parallel to the roof line. They are individually cut

~at the bottom to conform with the angle and make a chevron pattern to the roof line.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Spring Banke is a rare example of a well-preserved, eighteenth-century, small
house of a type that was occupied by tenants, small farmers, and other colonists
of limited means. )

It is one of the few houses in Baltimore Hundred to survive virtually unaltered
from the era of the dispute between Maryland and Delaware over the right to possession
of the area. The conflict lasted for nearly a century before it was finally resolved
in 1775. The skirmishes by raiding parties from both sides affected not only title
to property, but also actual security of the area's inhabitants. The architecture

_of Spring Banke reflects the social implications of the protracted conflict in this
area. The insecurity of land titles in the region probably discouraged erection of
substantial houses that exist along the rest of the coast of Maryland and Delaware.
Thus, the standard house in this area was a one-room structure., Only after the dis-
pute was settled did the majority of the residents feel secure enough to build a
larger home or to add another section. '

Spring Banke was originally a 500-acre tract granted by Maryland to William
" 'Digges in 1687. In 1746 a hundred~acre portion was bought by Hinnan Wharton, who
left it in 1778 to his son, David., After David Wharton's death, Littleton Townsend
bought the property from his heirs,

In 1808, when Littleton Townsend sold his part of Spring Banke to his son John,
he indicated that a lot on the northwest corner of Spring Banke, the location of the

present four-acre plot and house, was occupied by Daniel Davenport, apparently a
tenant on the land.

When he sold the surrounding area to his son, John, Littleton Townsend exemptéd
Davenport's lot. Five years later Townsend sold Davenport's homesite to Aaron
Wharton who passed it on to his son, Eli Parker Wharton.

In 1835, Lemuel Williams bought the property from Eli Parker Wharton, son of
Rhoda Wharton Howard, Rhoda, in a separate deed, renounced her one-third dower
to the property.

Lemuel Williams lived only two years after purchasing the property, but his
widow, Nancy, lived nearly forty years. She joined her brother~in-law, Ezekiel
Williams, Jr., in building a new 65-foot schooner, the MARY ANN CATHERINE. Mrs.

" Williams had income from the shipping trade, and a store next to the house. The
fact that the house was owned by a widow who lived to be nearly ninety, and whose
- family was already grown, helps to explain how the house escaped the extensive
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The interior layout of the newer part is similar to the original section. There
is a single back door between the two rear windows. Originally, there was also a
center door in the front (south wall), but it was closed up early in the history of
the wing.

Centered on the east wall is a large fireplace. To its right are the stairway,
the stairway door, and the door to the storage space beneath the stairway. Above
the fireplace is the mantel and to its left a cupboard. There are two six-panelled
doors; one leads to the early house on the west wall and the other is the entrance
door on the north wall. There is a chair rail, door trim with ovolo moulding, and
beading. The ceiling joists are exposed and beaded. There is a design in the ceil-
ing apparently made by playing the soot from a burning candle over whitewash. The
floorboards upstairs and downstairs are predominantly cypress. The upstairs has
very simple trim around the window and beaded baseboard. The ceiling joists are also
exposed and beaded. BApparently, it was originally one large room, but it has been
divided into two, with a later plastered wall. The attic floorboards were apparently
removed as the ceiling has been plastered, but will be replaced with similar boards
of the period.

On the roof of each section, hand-split cedar shingles have been applied using
the nine-inch exposure found on the shingles protected by the addition of the later
house. Heating ducts and electrical switches and sockets are being hidden. The
entire house has been rewired and insulated and will be replastered.

The house stands by the side of the main road from Bethany Beach to Dagsboro.
Modern road-widening has encroached on the site but has not destroyed the setting.
A store formerly stood on the property.
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Victorianization that befell most houses in the area during this period. She or her
husband may have built the newer part of the house,

After Nancy Williams, the house was occupied by several families of the area:
the Helm family; John Steel, a merchant; Henry Holt, a merchant and sawmill operator;
and George Torbert, Sr., the last owner to operate the store. Shortly after World
War I, Edgar Evans agreed to buy the house and moved to the property. His third
wife, Effie Evans, got a clear deed in her own name in 1927. She was the second
widow to occupy the house, living there alone for twenty years.

The exceptional preservation of the property can be attributed in part to the
fact that its owners have been financially unable to remodel and to modernize it
extensively. The house is being restored by the son of the current owner.

Because it has been altered little since the eighteenth century, the older part
of the house is a rare expression of the architecture of an unsettled period in
southern Delaware history. When land ownership was unsure, government was tenuous
at best, and the region was depressed as a result.



